
West Windsor Selectboard 

Draft Minutes 

July 9, 2018 

 

Present: Brett Myers, Win Johnson, Matt Kantola, Mike Spackman, Tom Kenyon, Martha Harrison, 

Cathy Archibald, Ralph & Sandi Brown, Chuck Kurtzhalz, Liz Cornell-Weber, Joan Calhoun, Rita 

Johnson, John Moody, Robert Hutchins, Howard Weiss-Tisman (VT Public Radio), Al Keiller, Bruce 

Boedtker, Bill Ley, Elizabeth Burrows, John Mudgett, Claudia Sacuk, Deb Shearer 

 

1) Call to Order – Selectboard Chair Win Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. 

2) Changes or additions to the agenda – Fence Viewers Report, June Police Report, Mts. Edge Easement  

3) Announcements/Public Comment – None  

4) Discuss proposal to change name of Mt. Ascutney to Kaskadenac – Win said the Selectboard received 

a letter from the VT Department of Libraries notifying them of a public hearing on a petition by 

Robert Hutchins to rename the summit of Mt. Ascutney as Kaskadenac. The letter, which requested 

the town’s opinion on the proposed change, is available on the town’s website. Win said the Windsor 

Selectboard will discuss the proposed change tomorrow night and the Weathersfield Selectboard will 

discuss it on July 16th. Win invited Robert Hutchins to attend the meeting tonight to explain his 

petition. Robert explained how he got interested in the history and geology of Mt. Ascutney as well as 

its original name. John Moody, an ethno-historian, had several hand-outs including one about the 

various names for the mountain over time. John spoke about the history and language of the Abenaki 

people and the research that has gone into determining that Kaskadenac would be a more historically 

accurate and meaningful name for the mountain, noting that the word “adenac” means “mountain” in 

the Abenaki language. Those present expressed concerns about a number of things including: the 

impact of a name change on area businesses and non-profit organizations; the fact that most of those 

who signed the petition do not live in Windsor, West Windsor, or Weathersfield; and their emotional 

attachment to the name “Mt. Ascutney” among other things. Al Keiller asked if there might be 

another way to honor the Native American name for the mountain. Elizabeth Burrows noted that the 

new school district is looking into the development of a “mountain curriculum” and said the 

information about the proposed name change presents a number of educational opportunities.  Win 

said most of the sentiments expressed on Front Porch Forum were opposed to the name change. Matt 

Kantola expressed support for the name change. Elizabeth suggested asking the Department of 

Libraries to postpone the decision for six months to allow time for more discussion. Various people 

suggested re-naming one of the trails on the mountain. Matt suggested a plaque on top of the 

mountain talking about the names it has had over the years. Win moved to send a letter to the 

Department of Libraries indicating that the residents of West Windsor are not ready to change 

the name of the mountain but they are interested in hearing more about the history and other 

ways to honor the history. Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.  

5) Recess/reconvene – The Selectboard recessed the meeting at 7:22 PM and reconvened downstairs at 

7:25 PM.   

6) Review 2017 audit with John Mudgett – John said the audit expresses a qualified opinion on the 

governmental activities as a whole and an unmodified “clean” opinion on the general fund, the 

highway fund, the utility funds, the business activities and any aggregate fund information. The 

qualified opinion is due to the fact that all capital assets are not yet accounted for in the financial 

statements, and also due to the fact that the state, at the time the draft financial statements were 

prepared, had not issued current data for the VT Municipal Employees Retirement System. John said 

they have now provided the data so it can be incorporated and that qualification can be eliminated. 

Win asked about including depreciation in the town and highway budgets. John said it’s only 

necessary to include depreciation in the utility budgets. John reviewed the fund balance in the General 

Fund, which was $740,126.67 at the end of 2016 and was $700,194.98 at the end of 2017. John noted 

that the town has committed $50,000 of the fund balance for tax stabilization in 2018. John noted that 



the Highway Fund had a $108,000 surplus at the end of 2017 and most of the other funds also had 

surpluses. Brett asked if more money could be used to reduce taxes. Win said yes but, if we use too 

much of it for that then, when the money runs out, the taxes would jump back up. Matt asked about 

investing the money in a mutual fund like Vanguard. Cathy said it’s in a money market account 

because we have to have access to it. John urged a cautious investment approach given that it’s the 

taxpayers money. Matt asked about capital planning. Win said we have a capital plan for the highway 

department but not for municipal buildings. There was brief discussion about the town’s 

capitalization policy. John said the Auditor’s report at the end addresses compliance and internal 

control. John said the 2016 report identified three deficiencies in internal control. For 2017, John said 

he updated those findings in a section called “Status of Prior Audit Findings.” Regarding the first 

finding, John said the town did install fund accounting software from the New England Municipal 

Resource Center (NEMRC) in 2017 and that software is currently in use, with ongoing training and 

support. The second finding notes that the town has delegated a lot of authority to the Treasurer and 

might want to get more people involved in reviewing things like bank reconciliations and time sheets. 

John said this finding still needs to be addressed. Win said the Selectboard is reviewing time sheets 

but needs to make sure the auditors are reviewing the bank reconciliations on a regular basis. John 

said the third finding had to do with accounting for capital assets – making sure they’re recorded and 

depreciated and there’s supporting data in the files. John suggested replacing the current manual 

system with dedicated software or a spreadsheet. John asked the Selectboard to update the 

Management Response to the findings. Win asked John if the Selectboard should vote to accept the 

financial statements. John said it would be good if the Selectboard accepted them at a future meeting 

after they’ve had more time to review them. John wasn’t sure if the Selectboard had already signed 

the management representation letter but said he would check.  

7) Town Clerk/Treasurer’s Report - Sign Town Clerk’s orders: Brett moved to sign orders. Matt 

seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 2018 Tax Rates: Win said the town tax rate has 

gone up due to the village sewer bond and the fire truck loan payments. The highway tax rate is 

almost flat and the appropriations went up slightly. Brett asked about the state tax rate. Cathy said it 

went up 30 cents. Win moved to set the town tax rate at 0.1701. Brett seconded the motion, 

which passed unanimously. Win moved to set the highway tax rate at 0.2225. Brett seconded the 

motion, which passed unanimously. Win moved to set the tax rate for appropriations at 0.0368. 

Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Win moved to set the Act 144 local 

construction property tax at 0.0393. Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Win 

noted that the total municipal tax rate will be 0.4687. Matt asked about the total homestead tax rate. 

Cathy said the homestead rate (state and municipal combined) will be 2.3213 and the non-residential 

rate will be 2.0229. Event applications: Cathy had three special event applications for the Selectboard 

to approve or disapprove. Win said two of them – Groennfell Meadery/Havoc Mead and Trail Break 

Taps & Tacos - are vendors for the Mountain Bike Festival. Win moved to approve the 

applications. Brett seconded the motion, which passed with Matt abstaining because he is on the 

planning committee for the Mountain Bike Festival.  

8) Highway Foreman’s report - Open Bible Hill culvert bids: The bids were as follows: Murphy & Son 

Construction bid $99,014; Fitzpatrick Excavating & Trucking bid $111,067; M.A. Bean Associates 

bid $103,000; Ameden Construction LLC bid $140,000; Daniels Construction bid $128,830; 

Northwoods Excavating bid $264,874; Griffin & Griffin Excavating bid $108,533; A.S. Clark & Sons 

bid $168,200; and Miller Construction bid $114,570. Tom noted that the town was happy with 

Murphy’s work on the Brook Road culvert several years ago. Mike agreed. Win asked Mike if he has 

worked with M. A. Bean or Griffin & Griffin. Mike said no. Given that Murphy has a proven record 

with the town, Win recommended going with the low bidder, subject to Mike’s review. Matt moved 

to select Murphy & Son Construction, subject to Mike’s review. Brett seconded the motion. 

Joan asked how much notice there will be before the road is closed for the project. Mike said the town 

will put up signs about a week in advance. Win said we’ll also put it on Front Porch Forum.   Sign 

Municipal Roads General Permit Notice of Intent: Brett moved to authorize Win to sign the 



MRGP Notice of Intent. Matt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Mike said 75% 

of our hydrologically connected road segments failed. Highway equipment: Mike said the mower 

transmission needs to be repaired. The new one-ton truck should be here at the end of the week. 

Blood Hill Road project: Mike said they hope to start the project this week. Route 44 paving: Mike 

said he talked with the state today about widening the road between Seems Road and the Post Office 

and they’re going to widen it by four feet. They’re going to start the paving project at Downer’s 

Corners next week and work their way up to the Woodstock town line, then they’re going to work 

from the intersection of Route 44 and 106 to the intersection of Route 44 and 44A.  

9) Clarify ownership of Snowstorm I and footbridge across Mill Brook – Win said the question is: when 

the town bought the mountain property, did we buy the snowmaking pump station and the footbridge? 

Win summarized the discussion as follows: To the best of our knowledge, we don’t own the land and 

we don’t own the stuff on it – the pump station or the bridge. Mike said as long as Orange Lake 

doesn’t remove the dry hydrant, he doesn’t have a problem with that. Win said he thinks we should 

meet with Leslie Levesque (Orange Lake) to clarify these issues.  

10) Confirm increased water system connection fee as discussed at 6/25/18 meeting – Matt moved to 

confirm the increase in the water system connection fee from $500 to $900. Brett seconded the 

motion, which passed unanimously.  

11) Town Hall wiring issues – Tom said the light in the room where the electrical panel is located is not 

working and the wiring is “knob and spool.” Tom recommended asking Stoney Electric to install 

some temporary lighting in that room. Tom also noted a light in the balcony that is on all the time. 

Win said he thinks we need a full assessment of the Town Hall from the foundation to the roof, 

including wiring and plumbing. Matt suggested prioritizing the electrical system and asking a couple 

of electricians for proposals to replace the knob and tube wiring. Tom asked if the town offices are 

staying in the Town Hall or moving to the school. Win said we won’t know that for at least four 

years. Matt asked why we would move. Martha said the town has an employee whose “office” is a 

stand-up desk in the corner of the meeting room. Win asked Matt if he can work with Tom, later in 

the fall, to get assessments/proposals from electrical contractors. Matt agreed.    

12) Other Business – June Police Report: Win said he talked with Orange Lake about changing their 

telephone access code from “9” to something else so there would be fewer false “911” calls and they 

agreed to look into it. Mts. Edge sewer easement: Win said the Mts. Edge Condo Association has 

signed the easement, which was prepared by Jim Barlow. Matt moved to authorize Win to sign the 

easement on behalf of the town. Brett seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. Fence 

Viewers Report: Win said he got a call from Garrett Mikita last week complaining about a neighbor’s 

horse on his property. In response, Win talked with the Windsor Police and activated the West 

Windsor Fence Viewers. Win said, according to the Windsor Police, there have been two episodes in 

five years. Tom Kenyon reported that he and Dennis Brown, two of West Windsor’s three fence 

viewers, went to the horse owner’s property and found that the horse is twenty-five years old. The 

owner said that she lets the horse feed on the lawn and one time she forgot about it and it wandered 

off during the night. Tom said the owner agrees that it was her error. Tom said the horse did not get 

out of the fenced area; they looked over some of the fence and it has problems but none of the 

problems would allow the horse to escape. Matt asked what type of fence it is. Tom said it’s an 

electrified split rail fence. Win asked if the property owner keeps more than one horse. Tom said he’s 

not aware of any other horses. Win said he was given the impression that there were multiple horses. 

Tom said they did not find a situation where the fence was not reasonably maintained. Tom 

recommended not taking any action; the owner is well aware of the situation and has the property for 

sale, which may help solve the problem. Win asked Tom if the fence was in reasonable condition to 

contain a horse. Tom said yes. Matt asked if the horse did any damage. Tom said it was reported that 

the horse went on the neighbor’s freshly seeded lawn. Win asked if the horse owner is on notice that 

she needs to maintain her fence if it needs maintenance. Tom said he didn’t state it in exactly those 

words, but she’s very clear about the complaint and accepts responsibility. Martha asked if the whole 

area is fenced so the horse can’t get out. Tom said it can’t get out of the pasture but if she leaves it on 



her lawn, it can walk down the driveway. Win said he will follow up with a letter to the horse owner 

letting her know that she needs to maintain fences that are suitable for containing livestock. Matt said 

that’s not the issue; the issue is that she didn’t have the horse in a fenced area.   

13) Approve Minutes – June 25th & June 27th: Matt moved to approve the minutes. Brett seconded the 

motion, which passed unanimously. 
14) Executive Session: Brett moved to go into executive session to consider engineering proposals for 

the sewer rehabilitation project. Matt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. After 

discussion, Win moved to come out of executive session. Brett seconded the motion, which 

passed unanimously. Win noted that the Selectboard passed a motion to choose Aldrich + Elliott as 

its consulting engineer for the sewer rehabilitation project.  

15) Adjourn – Win moved to adjourn at 8:57 PM. Brett seconded the motion, which passed without 

objection.  
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Martha Harrison 


